

## PARENTAL LEAVE GUIDANCE

(incorporating unpaid parental leave and shared parental leave)

Author(s)	HR Advisor
Document Version	Final
Date issued	23 November 2017

#### Contents

Section		Page
1	Introduction	3
2	Health and safety	3
3	Unpaid parental leave	3
3.1	Eligibility to take unpaid parental leave	4
3.1.1	Foster parents	4
3.2	Process for applying for unpaid parental leave	4
4	Shared parental leave and pay	5
4.1	Eligibility	5
4.1.1	Shared parental leave	5
4.1.2	Shared parental pay	6
4.2	Starting shared parental leave	8
4.3	Starting shared parental pay	8
4.4	Cancelling the decision to maternity or adoption leave	8
4.5	Process for applying for shared parental leave and pay	8
4.6	Shared parental leave in touch days	9
4.7	Returning to work following shared parental leave	9
4.8	Returning to work whilst breastfeeding	10
5	Annual leave and bank holidays	10
6	Deductions from salary	10
6.1	Pensions	10
6.2	Trade union / hospital fund subscriptions	10
6.3	Lease cars	10
6.4	Salary sacrifice schemes	11
6.4.1	Salary sacrifice car scheme	11
6.4.2	Cycle to work scheme	11
6.4.3	Childcare voucher / nursery salary sacrifice scheme	11
7	Employee care services	12
Appendix		Page
1	Frequently asked questions – unpaid parental leave	13
2	Frequently asked questions – shared parental leave	14
3	Unpaid parental leave application form	15
4	Form 1 – notification of intention to end maternity or	16
	adoption leave and pay	10
5	Form 2 – Application form for shared parental leave and	18
	pay (mother/adopter)	
6	Form 3 – Application form for shared parental leave and	22
	pay (partner)	
7	Glossary	26
8	Useful contacts / information	27

## **Related policies:**

Managing Attendance Policy	Maternity Leave Guidance
Flexible Working Policy	Maternity Support (Paternity) Leave
Annual Leave Policy	Adoption Leave
NHS Terms and Conditions of Service Handbook	Overpayments and Underpayments Policy and Procedure

## 1 Introduction

This guidance applies to all staff irrespective of their Age, Disability, Gender reassignment, Marriage and Civil partnership, Pregnancy and Maternity, Race, Religion and Belief, Sex and Sexual orientation.

This guidance is intended for any employee wishing to take either unpaid parental leave or shared parental leave.

It outlines eligibility and entitlement, however, further advice can be obtained from the Human Resources Department.

### 2 Health and Safety

Women who have recently given birth must take 2 weeks statutory maternity leave. If adopting, the person claiming adoption pay must take at least 2 weeks of adoption leave. Shared parental leave cannot be taken during this period.

Managers must carry out the Trust's New and Expectant Mothers' Risk Assessment for:

- a) pregnant employees;
- b) any employee returning to work within 6 months of giving birth;<sup>1</sup>
- c) breastfeeding mothers on their return to work.

Where risks are identified, the manager should take reasonable steps to remove them, e.g. by amending duties, offering different work or changing the employee's hours.

If the risks cannot be reasonably removed, suspension on full pay should be considered after taking advice from the Health and Safety Officer and Human Resources Department.

Risk assessments should be reviewed / revisited following any change in role and / or change in the employee's health status.

Suitable rest facilities must be provided for pregnant and breastfeeding employees.

#### 3 Unpaid parental leave

Eligible employees can take unpaid parental leave to look after their child's welfare, e.g. to:

- spend more time with their children
- look at new schools
- settle children into new childcare arrangements

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> including a still birth after 24 weeks of pregnancy.

• spend more time with family, such as visiting grandparents.

Their employment rights are protected during parental leave.

Parental leave is unpaid. You are entitled to take 18 weeks' leave for each child and adopted child, up to their 18<sup>th</sup> birthday.

The limit on how much parental leave you can take in a year is 4 weeks for each child.

You must take parental leave as whole weeks rather than individual days. The exception to this is if your child had a disability. A whole week is the total number of days you normally work in a week i.e. if you work 3 days a week, a whole week is 3 days.

If an employee works irregular hours (such as annualised hours) the number of days in a week is the total number of hours they work a year divided by 52.

The leave does not have to be taken all at once.

Parental leave applies to each child, not the individual's job. For example, if an employee has taken 10 weeks' parental leave with a previous employer/s, they can use up to 8 weeks' leave with their new employer.

## 3.1 Eligibility to take unpaid parental leave

Employees qualify if <u>all</u> of the following apply:

- they have worked for the Trust for at least a year
- they are named on the child's birth or adoption certificate or they have parental responsibility
- they are not a 'worker', e.g. an agency worker or contractor
- the child is under 18.

It is reasonable to ask for proof (such as a birth certificate), however, employees should only have to provide evidence once, not for each subsequent request.

#### 3.1.1 Foster parents

Whilst there is no statutory right for foster parents to take parental leave, the Trust recognises the need for foster parents to balance their fostering and work responsibilities. As such, managers will consider any request for parental leave from foster parents in the same manner as any other parent.

#### 3.2 **Process for applying for unpaid parental leave**

You must complete the unpaid parental leave application form (Appendix 3) giving your manager at least 21 days' notice.

A manager cannot refuse your request for unpaid parental leave if:

- they do not have a 'significant reason' e.g. it would cause serious disruption to the service;
- the leave is being taken by the father or partner immediately after the birth or adoption of the child;
- it means you would no longer qualify for parental leave e.g. postponing the leave until after the child's 18<sup>th</sup> birthday.

If a manager wishes to postpone the request for unpaid parental leave they must:

- explain the reason in writing within 7 days of the request;
- suggest a new start date this must be within 6 months of the requested start date;
- honour the amount of leave requested, e.g. if the original request is for 3 weeks they must allow the employee to take 3 weeks.

### 4 Shared parental leave and pay

Shared parental leave (SPL) enables eligible parents to choose how to share the care of the child during the first year of birth or adoption. Its purpose is to give parents more flexibility in considering how to best care for, and bond with, their child. All eligible employees have a statutory right to take shared parental leave.

If you're eligible for shared parental leave you can use it to take leave in blocks of whole weeks separated by periods of work, instead of taking it all in one go.

Following the 2 weeks of statutory maternity or adoption leave you can choose to take the remaining 50 weeks as SPL.

#### You can take shared parental leave at the same time as your partner.

#### 4.1 Eligibility

It is the **employee's** responsibility to check that they are eligible for shared parental leave and pay. The Trust will grant leave and pay based on the information and declarations provided by the employee. If it is subsequently discovered that the employee was overpaid as they were not entitled to receive shared parental pay, the overpayment will be recovered in line with the Trust's Overpayments and Underpayments Policy and Procedure.

#### 4.1.1 Shared parental leave

Each parent qualifies separately for shared parental leave and statutory shared parental pay (ShPP).

To qualify for SPL, you must share responsibility for the child with one of the following:

- your spouse, civil partner or joint adopter;
- the child's other parent;

• your partner (if they live with you and the child).

Both parents must share the main responsibility for the care of the child at the time of the birth or placement for adoption.

In addition, any employee wishing to take SPL must satisfy **each** of the following criteria:

- the mother/adopter of the child must be entitled to maternity/adoption leave and must have ended or given notice to end their maternity/adoption leave;
- the employee must still be working for the Trust at the start of each period of SPL;
- the employee must have worked for the Trust continuously for at least 26 weeks at the end of the 15<sup>th</sup> week before the child's expected due date or the week the employee is matched with a child if adopting.

During the 66 weeks before the week the baby is due or the week you are matched with your child, your partner must:

- have been working for at least 26 weeks (these do not have to be consecutive weeks);
- Have earned the minimum amount<sup>2</sup>.

This can be as an employee, worker, or if they are self-employed. Your partner doesn't have to be working at the date of the birth or when you start SPL or ShPP.

## 4.1.2 Statutory Shared Parental Pay (ShPP)

ShPP is paid at the statutory rate<sup>3</sup>

You can get ShPP if you're an employee and one of the following applies:

- you're eligible for statutory maternity pay (SMP) or statutory adoption pay (SAP);
- you're eligible for statutory paternity pay (SPP) and your partner is eligible for SMP, maternity allowance (MA) or SAP.

## 4.1.3 Occupational Shared Parental Pay

An employee working full-time or part-time will be entitled to paid and unpaid shared parental leave under the NHS occupational shared parental leave and pay scheme if:

 they have 12 months' continuous service<sup>4</sup> with one or more NHS employers at the beginning of the 11th week before the expected week of childbirth, or at

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Details of the minimum amount can be found at <u>https://www.gov.uk/shared-parental-leave-and-pay/eligibility</u>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Details of the statutory rate can be found at <u>https://www.gov.uk/shared-parental-leave-and-pay/what-youll-get</u>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Paragraphs 15.106 to 15.109 of the NHS terms and conditions of service handbook define the service that can be counted towards the 12 months continuous service qualification.

the beginning of the week in which they are notified of being matched with a child for adoption, or by the 15th week before the baby's due date if applying via a surrogacy arrangement;

- they notify their employer of their wish to take shared parental leave and provide a minimum of eight weeks' notice, which will confirm:
  - a) their intention to take shared parental leave;
  - b) the date(s) they wish to access shared parental leave;
  - c) their intention to return to work with the same or another NHS employer for a minimum period of three months after their shared parental leave has ended;
  - d) that the mother or primary adopter has returned to work following maternity or adoption leave, or has provided the binding notice.
- they confirm that the other parent meets the statutory employment and earnings test by being an employed or self-employed earner in the UK for a total of 26 weeks (not necessarily continuously) in the 66 weeks preceding the week the child is due to be born or matched for adoption. The individual must have earned at least an average of £30 (gross) a week in 13 of those 26 weeks (not necessarily continuously). This amount can be amended from time to time by the Secretary of State.

The below table shows the maximum joint entitlement of an eligible couple to occupational shared parental pay. Where either parent has received statutory or occupational maternity pay, maternity allowance or statutory or occupational adoption pay in respect of the child, the below entitlement will be reduced proportionate to the amount either parent has taken or notified as intending to take.

Weeks	Occupational Shared Parental Pay
1-6 weeks	Full pay. Full pay is inclusive of any ShPP. The total
	receivable cannot exceed full pay
7-24 weeks	Half of full pay plus any ShPP. The total receivable cannot
	exceed full pay
25 -37 weeks	ShPP that they are entitled to under the statutory scheme
38-50 weeks	No pay

Shared parental leave and pay is a joint entitlement. Details of how occupational and statutory shared parental leave pay is calculated can be found in section 15 of the NHS Terms and Conditions of Service.

## 4.2 Starting shared parental leave

To start shared parental <u>leave</u>, the mother (or the person taking adoption leave) must either:

- return to work, which ends any maternity leave or adoption leave;
- give their manager 'binding notice' of the date they plan to end their leave (this date cannot normally be changed once given).

If the mother receives maternity allowance, she must also give notice to Jobcentre Plus.

## You can start shared parental leave while your partner is still on maternity or adoption leave as long as they have given binding notice to end it.

### 4.3 Starting shared parental pay

To start shared parental <u>pay</u>, the mother or adopter must give binding notice of the date they plan to end maternity or adoption pay.

If the mother receives maternity allowance, she must give notice to Jobcentre Plus instead.

The mother or adopter, cannot restart maternity pay, Maternity Allowance or adoption pay once it has ended.

## You can start shared parental pay while your partner is still on maternity or adoption leave as long as they have given binding notice to end it.

## 4.4 Cancelling the decision to end maternity or adoption leave

The mother or adopter may be able to change their decision to end maternity or adoption leave early if both:

- the planned end date hasn't passed;
- they haven't already returned to work.

One of the following must also apply:

- you find out during the 8-week notice period that neither of you is eligible for SPL or ShPP;
- the mother or adopter's partner has died;
- the mother tells her manager less than 6 weeks after the birth (and she gave notice before the birth).

## 4.5 **Process for applying for shared parental leave and pay**

The employee should complete the relevant shared parental leave application form with their manager giving at least 8 weeks' notice of the leave dates.

The following forms must be completed:

**Form 1 (appendix 4)** – this form is completed by the person taking maternity or adoption leave **if they are an employee of the Trust**. The form informs the Trust of their intention to end their maternity or adoption leave early.

**Form 2 (appendix 5)** – this form should be completed by an employee of the Trust who is the person taking maternity or adoption leave pay if they have completed form 1 to end their leave and pay and wish to take shared parental leave.

**Form 3 (appendix 6) -** this form should be completed by employees of the Trust who are the partner of someone who is taking maternity or adoption leave and wish to take shared parental leave and / or pay. For example, you are the child's father and your partner intends to end her maternity leave early so you can take shared parental leave.

Employees are entitled to submit three separate <u>notices</u> to book leave. This means that employees can book up to three separate blocks for SPL instead of taking it all in one go. Each separate block must be of at least a week. Submitting a variation to change leave already booked will count as one of the three notices.

The manager should forward the application form to the HR Department, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor, Stockdale House, Headingley Office Park, 8 Victoria Road, Leeds LS6 1PF or via <u>lch.hr@nhs.net</u>

The manager should inform IT of the absence to ensure NHS Mail and system log-in is not disabled.

## 4.6 Shared parental leave in touch days

Shared parental leave in touch (SPLIT) days are in addition to the 10 keeping in touch days available to those on maternity or adoption leave.

Each parent can work up to 20 SPLIT days whilst on shared parental leave.

The work can be consecutive or not and can include training or other activities which enable the employee to keep in touch with the workplace.

Any such work must be by agreement and neither the manager nor the employee can insist on it.

The employee will be paid at their basic daily rate for the hours worked, less appropriate shared parental leave payment for SPLIT days worked.

Working for part of any day will count as one SPLIT day.

#### 4.7 Returning to work following shared parental leave

An employee has the right to return to their job under their original contract and on no less favourable terms and conditions.

If the employee wishes to return to work on different hours, the manager should request an application for flexible working in line with the Flexible Working Policy.

In the event of an illness following the date the employee was due to return to work, normal sickness absence will apply in line with the Trust's Managing Attendance Policy.

Managers are required to carry out the New and Expectant Mother's Risk Assessment for women who return to work within 6 months of giving birth.

### 4.8 Returning to work whilst breastfeeding

The Trust is required to provide somewhere for breastfeeding mothers to rest. Managers and employees are encouraged to discuss the employee's intention to express milk prior to the employee's return to work wherever possible in order that a suitable environment can be considered.

Managers are required to carry out the New and Expectant Mother's Risk Assessment for women who return to work whilst breastfeeding.

#### 5 Annual Leave and Bank Holidays

Employees accrue annual leave and bank holidays during parental leave and shared parental leave.

#### 6 Deductions from salary

#### 6.1 Pensions

Pension rights and contributions shall be dealt with in accordance with the provisions of the NHS Superannuation Regulations.

A factsheet can be found at:

https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/2018-09/Maternity%2C%20paternity%2C%20parental%20and%20adoption%20leave%20 %2809.2018%29%20%28V5.0%29.pdf

#### 6.2 Trade union / hospital fund subscriptions

For any subscriptions you pay direct from your salary, you will need to make arrangements to pay them directly during any unpaid parental leave.

#### 6.3 Lease cars

You have the option to return the vehicle during maternity leave or retain the car for your own private mileage at the contracted price. Contact Lease Cars on 0113 3055927 for advice.

## 6.4 Salary Sacrifice Schemes

If you have taken a benefit such as a salary sacrifice car, cycle though the cycle to work scheme or childcare vouchers, this will affect the amount of maternity/adoption pay you will receive and may affect the amount of shared parental leave you will receive. You should consider carefully the implications of signing up to such a scheme if you are considering having a child during the lifetime of the scheme.

### 6.4.1 Salary sacrifice car scheme

If you have a salary sacrifice car this will have implications on the amount of maternity/adoption pay you receive and may have an effect on the amount of shared parental leave pay you receive.

The scheme allows for one claim during the duration of the lease to cover maternity/adoption leave. On receipt of your maternity/adoption leave application, HR will forward a copy of your MatB1/matching certificate to the Salary Sacrifice Car Scheme providers in order to make the claim.

### 6.4.2 Cycle to work scheme

If you have a cycle through the scheme this may have implications on the amount of maternity/adoption pay you receive and may have an effect on the amount of shared parental leave pay you receive.

During maternity/adoption/shared parental leave, your gross salary will be at the reduced level according to the salary sacrifice arrangements. If your monthly salary drops to below the amount of the salary sacrifice, your payments will be suspended until your earnings increase and the length of the loan will extend accordingly.

#### 6.4.3 Childcare vouchers / nursery salary sacrifice scheme

If you wish to continue using your childcare vouchers during your maternity/adoption/shared parental leave you can continue to take childcare vouchers, or to use a childcare place in one of the Trust nurseries, via the salary sacrifice scheme, throughout your paid and unpaid maternity leave.

If you choose to take this option, then your occupational maternity/adoption pay statutory maternity/adoption pay and shared parental leave pay will be calculated on the reduced pay that you currently receive under the salary sacrifice arrangement.

Alternatively, if you do not wish your pay to be reduced, or do not expect to be using childcare during your leave, then you may decide to withdraw from the scheme.

Please note from April 2018, childcare voucher schemes (Fideliti for LCH staff) will be closing to new applicants. Employees who have already signed up will be eligible to keep receiving vouchers. The childcare vouchers schemes are being replaced by the tax free childcare scheme run by HRMC (TFC). For more information about the TFC scheme please visit <u>https://www.childcarechoices.gov.uk</u> or contact the TFC team on 0300 123 4907.

It is recommended that employees discuss their options with the Employee Care Services Team on 0113 2066327 as early as possible and prior to the 12<sup>th</sup> week of pregnancy.

## 7 Employee Care Service (Leeds Teaching Hospitals Staff Health & Wellbeing Team)

Employee care services are part of Leeds Teaching Hospitals' staff health & wellbeing team offer sessions such as baby massage and baby. They can be contacted on 0113 3928384 or via <u>collette.brown@nhs.net</u>

#### Frequently asked questions – unpaid parental leave

- 1. Is parental leave paid? No.
- 2. Can I take parental leave in days? Yes, if your child has a disability, otherwise it must be taken in full weeks.
- **3.** I have recently started with the Trust, can I take parental leave? No, you must have worked for the Trust continuously for 1 year.
- 4. How much notice do I have to give my manager? At least 3 weeks' notice.
- 5. Can my manager refuse my request for unpaid parental leave? No, however, your manager can postpone your leave if the leave would have a significant impact on service delivery.

If you are the father or partner and have asked to take parental leave immediately following the birth or adoption of a child your manager cannot refuse your request to take unpaid parental leave.

Your manager can refuse the request if you have not worked for the Trust continuously for 1 year.

#### 6. Will I return to work in my original role?

You have the right to return to your job under your original contract and on no less favourable terms and conditions. If any changes are proposed due to restructure whilst you are on unpaid parental leave, you will be consulted fully.

7. What if I'm too unwell to return to work immediately following my unpaid parental leave?

You must report as unfit for work in line with your local procedures. Your sickness will be managed in line with the Managing Attendance Policy.

#### 8. Can I carry over my annual leave?

Yes, you will accrue annual leave and bank holidays whilst on unpaid parental leave. If you do not have the opportunity to take the leave within the current leave year, you will be entitled to carry it over to the leave year you are due to return to work following your unpaid parental leave.

## 9. I'm a foster parent, can I take unpaid parental leave? Yes.

#### Frequently asked questions – shared parental leave

- 1. Is shared parental leave and pay right for me? You should ensure you and your partner are eligible to take shared parental leave before applying.
- 2. When can I start my shared parental leave? From 2 weeks after the birth of the child or the date the child is placed with you if adopting.
- 3. How much notice do I need to give to take a period of shared parental leave? 8 weeks.
- **4.** Do I have to take all my shared parental leave at once? No, you can submit up to 3 notices to take shared parental leave.
- 5. Can I take my shared parental leave in odd days? No, it must be taken in full weeks.
- 6. Can I take shared parental leave whilst my partner is still on maternity/adoption leave? Yes, as long as your partner has given their employer 'binding notice' of their intention to end their maternity/adoption leave.
- 7. Can I take shared parental leave at the same time as my partner? Yes.
- 8. Will I return to work in my original role? You have the right to return to your job under your original contract and on no less favourable terms and conditions. If any changes are proposed due to restructure whilst you are on shared parental leave, you will be consulted fully.
- 9. What if I'm too unwell to return to work immediately following my maternity/adoption or shared parental leave? You must report as unfit for work in line with your local procedures. Your sickness will be managed in line with the Managing Attendance Policy.

#### 10. Can I carry over my annual leave?

Yes, you will accrue annual leave and bank holidays whilst on shared parental leave. If you do not have the opportunity to take the leave within the current leave year, you will be entitled to carry it over to the leave year you are due to return to work following your shared parental leave.

#### APPLICATION FOR UNPAID PARENTAL LEAVE

Payroll number	
Full Name	
Home Address (please ensure your correct contact details are updated on ESR)	
Contact Tel no.	
Job Title	
Base	
Manager's name	
Manager's email address	
Trust start date	
NHS start date	
Contract expiry date (if applicable)	
Start date of unpaid parental leave	
End date of unpaid parental leave	
Total number of weeks (or days if eligible)	Weeks / Days (delete as appropriate)
Total number of weeks / days already taken	

#### Employee's Declaration:

I have read the Parental Leave Guidance and confirm I am eligible to take unpaid parental leave:

Signed: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_

Managers should ensure the appropriate form is completed on Elsie to inform Payroll of the employee's decision to take unpaid parental leave. A copy of this application form should remain on the employee's local file.

#### FORM 1 – NOTIFICATION OF INTENTION TO END MATERNITY OR ADOPTION LEAVE AND PAY

(only to be completed if you or your partner intend to take shared parental leave and pay)

#### COMPLETE THIS FORM IF YOU EMPLOYED BY THE TRUST AND YOU ARE THE MOTHER / ADOPTER TAKING MATERNITY / ADOPTION LEAVE

SECTION A	GENERAL
Payroll number	
Full Name	
Home Address (please ensure your correct contact details are updated on ESR)	
Contact Tel no.	
Job Title	
Base	
Manager's name	
Manager's email address	
Trust start date	
NHS start date	
Contract expiry date (if applicable)	
Child's expected date of birth OR date of matching	
Actual date of child's birth (if born)	
Employee's declaration:	Please accept this as my notice to curtail my maternity or adoption leave and pay. This form is accompanied by notification that either I intend to take shared parental leave and/or shared parental pay or that my partner intends to take shared parental leave and/or shared parental pay. I understand that my maternity or adoption leave will end on the date given in section B and that my maternity or adoption pay will end on the date given in section C. I understand that I can only reinstate my maternity or adoption leave if I revoke this notice before the curtailment date given in section B. I understand that I can only reinstate any statutory maternity or adoption pay that I am eligible for if I revoke this notice before the end date given in section C.

SECTION B	CURTAILING MATERNITY OR ADOPTION LEAVE (MUST BE COMPLETED)
Date maternity/adoption leave started or is due to	•
start	
Date maternity/adoption	
leave will end	
Total number of weeks of	
maternity/adoption leave	
that will have been taken at	
the date maternity/adoption	
leave ends	
SECTION C	CURTAILING MATERNITY OR ADOPTION PAY (ONLY COMPLETE IF CLAIMING ShPP)
SECTION C Date maternity/adoption pay	
Date maternity/adoption pay	
Date maternity/adoption pay started or is due to start	
Date maternity/adoption pay started or is due to start Date maternity/adoption pay will end	
Date maternity/adoption pay started or is due to start Date maternity/adoption pay will end Total number of weeks	
Date maternity/adoption pay started or is due to start Date maternity/adoption pay will end Total number of weeks maternity/adoption pay that	
Date maternity/adoption pay started or is due to start Date maternity/adoption pay will end Total number of weeks maternity/adoption pay that will have been paid at the	
Date maternity/adoption pay started or is due to start Date maternity/adoption pay will end Total number of weeks maternity/adoption pay that	

I intend to take shared parental leave and have submitted form 2 to my line	
manager	
I do not intend to take shared parental leave but consent to my partner's claim for	
shared parental leave and/or pay	

Signed: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

To be submitted to your line manager, accompanied by form B or form C.

#### FORM 2 – APPLICATION FORM FOR SHARED PARENTAL LEAVE AND PAY (mother/adopter)

#### COMPLETE THIS FORM IF YOU ARE EMPLOYED BY THE TRUST AND YOU ARE THE MOTHER / ADOPTER WHO HAS TAKEN MATERNITY / ADOPTION LEAVE

Section A – GENERAL		
Payroll number		
Full Name		
Home Address (please ensure your correct contact details are updated on ESR)		
Contact Tel no.		
Job Title		
Base		
Manager's name		
Manager's email address		
Trust start date		
NHS start date		
Contract expiry date (if applicable)		
Partner's name		
Partner's address		
Partner's national insurance number		
Child's expected date of birth or date matched with child for adoption OR		
Actual date of child's birth (if child not born I will submit this as soon as possible after the birth)		
Section B – ENTITLEMENT TO L	EAVE	
Number of weeks' shared parent	tal leave available	Example
Total number of weeks maternity / adoption leave taken		26 weeks (mother ends maternity leave after 26 weeks)
52 weeks minus total number of weeks maternity / adoption		52 - 26 = 26 weeks shared parental leave available

(must be submitted with Form 1)

leave taken (as stated abo	ove)		
Number of weeks' share	d parental pay availa	ble	Example
Total number of weeks maternity / adoption leav taken	/e		26 weeks (mother ends maternity leave after 26 weeks)
39 weeks minus total nu of weeks maternity / ado leave taken (as stated abo	ption ove)		39 – 26 = 13 weeks shared parental pay available
SECTION C - INTENTION	-		
Total number of weeks s			
parental leave I intend to			
Total number of weeks s			
parental leave my partne intends to take	÷1		
Dates I intend to take sh	ared parental leave:		
From		То	
Total number of weeks:			
From		То	
Total number of weeks:			
From		То	
Total number of week:			
Dates I intend to take sh the 39 weeks following the comm			ental pay can only be claimed during
From		То	
Total number of weeks:			
From		То	
Total number of weeks:			
From		То	
Total number of weeks:			
SECTION D - EMPLOYE	E'S DECLARATION		
Employee's declaration			
•••			shared parental leave.
			eeks at the end of the 15 <sup>th</sup>
	eek in which the child	•	
	uously employed for 2 notified of having bee		nd of the week in which I doption.

- I will remain employed with the Trust until any period of shared parental leave ends. I have the main responsibility for caring for the child (along with my partner). I am entitled to maternity or adoption leave. •
- •
- •

- I have reduced my entitlement to maternity or adoption leave and the remaining weeks are now available as shared parental leave.
- I will inform my employer immediately if I am no longer caring for my child.
- The information provided in this declaration is accurate and meets the notification requirements for shared parental leave.

#### The following points only apply if you intend to take shared parental pay:

- I am giving notice that I am entitled to and intend to take shared parental pay.
- I have been (or will be) paid at least the Lower Earnings Limit in the 8 weeks leading up to the end of the 15<sup>th</sup> week before the expected week of childbirth or, in the case of adoption, the week in which I was notified of having been matched for adoption with the child.
- I am entitled to either SMP or SAP, the pay period will be reduced and the period that remains is available as ShPP.
- I will be absent from work in each week in which I will be paid shared parental pay and I will be on shared parental leave in those weeks.
- I intend to care for my child in the weeks I receive shared parental pay.
- I will remain employed with the Trust until before the date of my first period of shared parental pay.
- I will immediately inform the Trust if I revoke the curtailment of my statutory maternity / adoption pay or maternity allowance.

DATE:

• The information provided in this declaration is accurate.

#### EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE:

### SECTION E – PARTNER'S DECLARATION

- I am the father of the child, or, at the date of birth / matching with the child for adoption, I was (or will be) the mother's/adopter's spouse, civil partner or partner.
- Along with the mother/adopter, I had (or will have) the main responsibility for the care of the child at the time of the birth (or adoption).
- I have been (or will have been) employed or self-employed in England, Scotland or Wales in 26 weeks of the 66 weeks before the expected week of birth or matching for adoption.
- I have (or will have) earned in total £390 in 13 weeks of the 66 weeks before the expected week of childbirth or matching for adoption.
- I consent to the amount of shared parental leave which the mother/adopter intends to take, as set out in section C above.
- I consent to Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust processing the information I have provided.
- I consent to the amount of shared parental pay which the mother/adopter intends to take, as set out in section C above.
- The information provided in this declaration is accurate.

PARTNER'S	DATE:	
SIGNATURE:		

#### Manager's declaration:

I have discussed shared parental leave with the above and am aware of his / her	n this form.
intention to take shared parental leave.	th the above and am aware of his / her

We have discussed annual leave entitlement and have agreed contact to keep in	
touch during shared parental leave.	
I have completed the online SW2 on Elsie to inform payroll of the employee's	
intention to take shared parental leave.	
I have informed IT of the length of absence to ensure NHS mail and system log-in	
is not disabled.	

Signed: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Once completed, please forward this form to:

Human Resources Department, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor, Stockdale House, Headingley Office Park, 8 Victoria Road, Leeds, LS6 1PF or, the application form can be emailed to <u>lch.hr@nhs.net</u> This must be from the manager's email account

#### FORM 3 – APPLICATION FORM FOR SHARED PARENTAL LEAVE AND PAY (partner)

#### COMPLETE THIS FORM IF YOU ARE AN EMPLOYEE OF THE TRUST AND YOU ARE THE PARTNER OF THE MOTHER / ADOPTER WHO HAS TAKEN MATERNITY / ADOPTION LEAVE

Section A – GENERAL		
Payroll number		
Full Name		
Home Address (please ensure your correct contact details are updated on ESR)		
Contact Tel no.		
Job Title		
Base		
Manager's name		
Manager's email address		
Trust start date		
NHS start date		
Contract expiry date (if applicable)		
Your partner's name (who must be the mother of the child or the adopter who is taking adoption leave)		
Your partner's address		
Your partner's national insurance number		
Child's expected date of birth or date matched with child for adoption OR		
Actual date of child's birth (if child not born I will submit this as soon as possible after the birth)		
SECTION B – AMOUNT OF SHAF	RED PARENTAL LEAVE AN	D PAY AVAILABLE
Number of weeks' shared parent	tal leave available	Example
Total number of weeks maternity / adoption leave taken by your partner		26 weeks (mother ends maternity leave after 26 weeks)

52 weeks minus total nu of weeks maternity / ado leave taken by your part stated above)	ption			52 – 26 = 26 weeks shared parental leave available
Number of weeks' share	d parenta	l pav availa	ble	Example
Total number of weeks maternity / adoption pay paid to your partner			26 weeks (mother ends maternity leave after 26 weeks)	
of weeks maternity / ado pay paid to your partner stated above)			39 – 26 = 13 weeks shared parental pay available	
SECTION C - INTENTION	-	E LEAVE		
Total number of weeks s				
parental leave I intend to				
Total number of weeks s parental leave my partne intends to take				
Dates I intend to take sh	ared pare	ntal loavo:		
	aleu pale	intal leave.		
From			То	
Total number of weeks:				
From			То	
Total number of weeks:				
From			То	
Total number of week:				
the 39 weeks following the comm				ental pay can only be claimed during
From			To	
Total number of weeks:				
From			То	
Total number of weeks:				
From			То	
Total number of weeks:				
SECTION D – EMPLOYE	E'S DECL	ARATION		
Employee's declaration	:			
<ul> <li>I am the father of the adoption, I was (or</li> </ul>	he child, oi r will be) th	r, at the date ne mother's/	e of birth / match adopter's spous	shared parental leave. hing with the child for e, civil partner or partner. veeks at the end of the 15 <sup>th</sup>

week before the week in which the child is due; OR

- I have been continuously employed for 26 weeks at the end of the week in which I (the adopter) was notified of having been matched for adoption.
- I will remain employed with the Trust until any period of shared parental leave ends.
- I have the main responsibility for caring for the child (along with my partner).
- I will inform my employer immediately if I am no longer caring for my child.
- The information provided in this declaration is accurate and meets the notification requirements for shared parental leave.

#### The following points only apply if you intend to take shared parental pay:

- I am giving notice that I am entitled to and intend to take shared parental pay.
- I have been (or will be) paid at least the Lower Earnings Limit in the 8 weeks leading up to the end of the 15<sup>th</sup> week before the expected week of childbirth or, in the case of adoption, the week in which I was notified of having been matched for adoption with the child.
- I will be absent from work in each week in which I will be paid shared parental pay and I will be on shared parental leave in those weeks.
- I intend to care for my child in the weeks I receive shared parental pay.
- I will be absent from work in each week in which I will be paid shared parental pay and I will be on shared parental leave in those weeks.
- I will remain employed with the Trust until before the date of my first period of shared parental pay.
- The information provided in this declaration is accurate.

#### EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE:

DATE:

# SECTION E – PARTNER'S DECLARATION (the mother or adopter who has taken maternity / adoption leave)

- I had (or will have) the main responsibility for the care of the child at the time of the birth (along with my partner who has made the declaration above).
- I am entitled to maternity / adoption leave in respect of the child and I have curtailed (or will curtail) my entitlement to maternity / adoption leave and pay (or I have returned to work).
- I have been (or will have been) employed or self-employed in England, Scotland or Wales in 26 weeks of the 66 weeks before the expected week of birth or matching for adoption.
- I have (or will have) earned in total £390 in 13 weeks of the 66 weeks before the expected week of childbirth or matching for adoption.
- I will immediately inform my partner if I revoke my notice to curtail my maternity leave.
- I consent to the amount of shared parental leave which my partner intends to take, as set out in section C above.
- I consent to Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust processing the information I have provided.
- The information provided in this declaration is accurate.

PARTNER'S	DATE:	
SIGNATURE:		

## Manager's declaration:

I have discussed shared parental leave with the above and am aware of his / her intention to take shared parental leave.	
We have discussed annual leave entitlement and have agreed contact to keep in touch during shared parental leave.	
I have completed the online SW2 on Elsie to inform payroll of the employee's intention to take shared parental leave.	
I have informed IT of the length of absence to ensure NHS mail and system log-in is not disabled.	

Signed:

Date:

Once completed, please forward this form to:

Human Resources Department, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor, Stockdale House, Headingley Office Park, 8 Victoria Road, Leeds, LS6 1PF or, the application form can be emailed to <u>lch.hr@nhs.net</u> This must be from the manager's email account

## Glossary

MA	Maternity allowance Usually paid if you do not qualify for statutory maternity pay.
SAP	Statutory adoption pay
	Paid for up to 39 weeks if you are eligible.
ShPP	Shared parental pay
	May be payable of the mother/adopter does not take their full
	entitlement to statutory maternity or adoption pay.
SMP	Statutory maternity pay
	Paid for up to 39 weeks if you are eligible.
SPL	Shared parental leave
	Provides both parents with the flexibility to choose how to care for
	their child/ren in their first year following birth or adoption.
SPLIT days	Shared parental leave in touch days
	Allows employees to work for up to 20 days during their shared
	parental leave.

### Useful contacts / information

LCH Pensions	0113 2064874
Department:	
Payroll:	Details of your payroll clerk can be found by searching for 'payroll' on Elsie
HR queries:	Lch.hr@nhs.net
Lease cars / salary sacrifice car queries:	0113 3055927
General information on entitlement to unpaid parental leave:	https://www.gov.uk/parental-leave/overview
General information on entitlement to shared parental leave:	https://www.gov.uk/shared-parental-leave-and-pay/overview http://www.acas.org.uk/media/pdf/1/c/Shared-Parental-Leave-a-good-practice-guide-for-employers- and-employees.pdf
Nurseries and post-natal classes:	http://www.leedsth.nhs.uk/a-z-of-services/nurseries/
NHS terms and conditions	of service :